

Consolidated Ethical Policies



Published 14th November 2022

Don-Bur (Bodies & Trailers) Limited, Registered Office: Mossfield Road, Adderley Green, Longton, Stokeon-Trent, Staffordshire, ST3 5BW. Registered in England No: 1571914. VAT Registration No. GB319377927

Tel: 01782 599 666 | www.donbur.co.uk

Consolidated Ethical Policies



Contents

1	Introduction	5
2	Principles of Social Responsibility	5
2.1	Fair working conditions	5
2.1.1 2.1.2 2.1.3 2.1.4 2.1.5 2.1.6	Non-discrimination and Non-harassment Fair and Lawful Labour Practices Freedom of Association Child and Forced Labour Clearly defined disciplinary policies Whistleblowing system	5 6 6
3	General Ethical and Respectable Business Practices	
3.1	Fair Dealing	6
3.2	Proper Advertising	7
3.3	Improper Advantage	7
3.4	Reporting and Recording Accurate Corporate Information	7
3.5	Information Management	7
3.6	Protection of Personal Information	7
3.7	Protection of Intellectual Property Rights	7
3.8	Management System to Implement these Principles	8
4	Quality Policy	8
5	Corruption & Anti-Bribery Policy	9
5.1	Background	9
5.2	Anti-Bribery Policy	9
5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3 5.3	Definitions When and how to report The consequences of bribery Hospitality and Gifts	10 10
5.3.1	Giving Gifts	
5.3.2 5.3.3 5.3.4 5.4	Receiving Gifts and Hospitality Acceptable gifts or hospitality Disclosing hospitality and gifts Conflict of Interest	11
5.4.1	Obligation to report	
5.5	Measures to Prevent Corruption	
5.6	Whistleblowing Policy	
6	Anti-Slavery Policy	
6.1	March 2021	
6.2	March 2019	
6.2.1 6.2.2	Supplier Correspondence	
6.3	March 2018.	

Consolidated Ethical Policies



7.1 Impact on the Supply Chain
7.2Policy Commitments - Don-Bur's Requirement of Suppliers167.3Policy Commitments - Don-Bur's Commitment to Suppliers177.3.1Purchasing Business Practices177.3.2Business Partners Review177.3.3Fair & Ethical Dealings177.3.4Fair Competition177.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.11Endpoint and network security188.12Software198.13Password Policy198.14Remote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2Iternet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices21
7.3Policy Commitments - Don-Bur's Commitment to Suppliers.177.3.1Purchasing Business Practices177.3.2Business Partners Review.177.3.3Fair & Ethical Dealings177.3.4Fair Competition177.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability.177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection.188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software.198.1.3Password Policy198.14Benote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices21
7.3.1Purchasing Business Practices.177.3.2Business Partners Review.177.3.3Fair & Ethical Dealings.177.3.4Fair Competition177.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability.177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection.188.1Computers and IT - GDPR.188.11Endpoint and network security188.12Software.198.13Password Policy198.14Remote working.198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.25Mobile Storage Devices218.25Mobile Storage Devices21
7.3.2Business Partners Review177.3.3Fair & Ethical Dealings177.3.4Fair Competition177.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.11Endpoint and network security188.12Software198.13Password Policy198.14Remote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2Mobile Storage Devices218.2Mobile Storage Devices218.2Mobile Storage Devices22
7.3.4Fair Competition177.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software198.1.3Password Policy198.14Remote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices21
7.4Reporting of Breaches and Accountability177.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software198.13Password Policy198.14Remote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
7.5Enquiries178Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software198.1.3Password Policy198.14Remote working198.15Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8Data Security & Protection188.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software198.1.3Password Policy198.1.4Remote working198.1.5Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8.1Computers and IT - GDPR188.1.1Endpoint and network security188.1.2Software198.1.3Password Policy198.1.4Remote working198.1.5Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
81.1Endpoint and network security1881.2Software1981.3Password Policy1981.4Remote working198.1.5Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices21
8.1.2Software.198.1.3Password Policy198.1.4Remote working.198.1.5Mobile Storage Devices.198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP).198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility.208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use.208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy.218.2.4Remote working.218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices.22
8.1.3Password Policy198.1.4Remote working198.1.5Mobile Storage Devices198.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8.1.4 Remote working. 19 8.1.5 Mobile Storage Devices. 19 8.2 Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP). 19 8.2.1 Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility. 20 8.2.2 Internet and Email Conditions of Use. 20 8.2.3 Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy. 21 8.2.4 Remote working. 21 8.2.5 Mobile Storage Devices. 22
8.1.5 Mobile Storage Devices 19 8.2 Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP) 19 8.2.1 Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility 20 8.2.2 Internet and Email Conditions of Use 20 8.2.3 Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy 21 8.2.4 Remote working 21 8.2.5 Mobile Storage Devices 22
8.2Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)198.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8.2.1Computer Access Control - Individual's Responsibility208.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use208.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8.2.2Internet and Email Conditions of Use
8.2.3Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy218.2.4Remote working218.2.5Mobile Storage Devices22
8.2.4 Remote working
8.2.5 Mobile Storage Devices 22
8.2.6 Software
8.2.7 Viruses
8.2.8 Telephony Voice and mobile data Equipment Conditions of Use
8.2.9 Actions upon Termination of Contract
8.2.10 Monitoring and Filtering
8.3 Data Protection Policy
8.3.1 Data Protection Clause
8.3.2 Data Protection Privacy Notice to Employees
8.4 Physical Security for HR Documentation Storage
8.5 Records Retention
8.6 Disposal of Confidential Waste
9 IT Disaster Recovery Plan - DRP
9.1 Contacts:
9.2 Server infrastructure
9.3 Backups
9.4 Internet Connection
9.5 Email systems
10 ICO Registration
11 Safe Contractor Scheme
12 Materials Management
12.1 REACH

Consolidated Ethical Policies



12.2	Waste Management	
13	Insurances	
13.1	Public & Products Liability	
13.2	Employers Liability	
13.3	Confirmation of Insurance	



1 Introduction

Responsible business practice is part of our heritage and is one of the key foundations for company health, trust and productivity. Responsible business conduct is also just simply good for business.

Our reputation is affected by the way employees act inside the company and with external parties. That reputation ultimately affects our growth and profitability. It is therefore important that we act according to the highest ethical standards and with integrity in order to earn and maintain the trust of our customers, stakeholders and the communities in which we operate, as well as our colleagues.

The responsibility to practice those standards belongs to all of us. Simply having a Code of Conduct is not sufficient and how we carry it out it is just as important as what we carry out. It is also important that everyone working at, or with, Don-Bur is comfortable raising questions or concerns about ethical issues. We support a culture of transparency, integrity and accountability.

To guide and promote good governance and ethical behaviour across our group, we maintain a series of policies. These guide our actions and those of our employees, suppliers and partners.

2 Principles of Social Responsibility

2.1 Fair working conditions

In recognition of the importance of providing fair working conditions, Don-Bur respects people and recognises fundamental human rights and expects people working and employed by Don-Bur ("Associates") to act in the same way.

2.1.1 Non-discrimination and Non-harassment

Don-Bur does not tolerate acts of discrimination or harassment. In particular, Don-Bur does not:

(1) unlawfully discriminate against anyone based on, for example, race, sex, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, political affiliation, union membership, marital status, nationality, ethnic background, religion, or disability; or,

(2) violate a person's dignity by engaging in harassment or abuse (on any grounds or in any form), corporal punishment, mental or physical coercion or threat of any such treatment.

2.1.2 Fair and Lawful Labour Practices

Don-Bur strives to comply with all local laws and regulations, instructions of competent authorities or appropriate local industry practices in relation to working conditions including hours, wages and benefits (including minimum wages) and overtime hours.



2.1.3 Freedom of Association

Don-Bur respects the rights of employees to associate freely with others, join or not join labour unions, seek representation and join workers' councils in accordance with local laws and regulations.

2.1.4 Child and Forced Labour

Don-Bur does not tolerate or engage in illegal labour practices. In particular Don-Bur does not: (1) use forced labour or involuntary prison labour;

(2) require Associates to hand over government-issued identification, passports or work permits to Don-Bur as a condition of employment (except temporary hand over for identification confirmation or government formalities);

(3) knowingly employ any persons below the age for completing compulsory schooling in accordance with local laws;

(4) knowingly employ persons under 15 years old (or 14 where the law of the country permits); or

(5) assign Associates under the age of 18 to work that is likely to jeopardize their health or safety.

Anti-Slavery Policy

2.1.5 Clearly defined disciplinary policies

Don-Bur shall clearly define disciplinary policies and procedures and communicate these policies and procedures to its employees.

2.1.6 Whistleblowing system

Don-Bur has established a whistleblowing <u>policy</u> and system and encourages Associates to report any violations of these principles, other company policies, local laws and regulations. Don-Bur does not authorise Associates to retaliate against persons for making a good faith report of a violation and, where appropriate and if permitted by local laws, shall ensure the anonymity of any whistle-blowers.

3 General Ethical and Respectable Business Practices

Don-Bur will act with the highest integrity and ethics in all aspects of our activities.

3.1 Fair Dealing

Don-Bur will comply with the anti-trust and competition laws of the countries and regions which apply to our operation and will not engage in any acts which will restrict or distort free and fair competition.

In purchasing goods and services, Don-Bur will select suppliers impartially and upon fair conditions.



3.2 Proper Advertising

Don-Bur shall uphold and comply with applicable standards of advertising and Don-Bur will refrain from knowingly using any misleading or inaccurate advertising.

3.3 Improper Advantage

Don-Bur shall not engage in any form of <u>corruption</u>, extortion or embezzlement. Bribes or other means of obtaining undue or improper advantage are not to be offered or accepted.

3.4 Reporting and Recording Accurate Corporate Information

Don-Bur shall record and report all necessary information including accounting records promptly and accurately, and retain them properly.

Don-Bur shall make accurate and timely disclosure of financial status and information on business operations to shareholders, investors and applicable capital markets to facilitate informed investment decisions in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Moreover, Don-Bur shall require Associates to ensure that statements of a personal nature appearing in newspapers or magazines, and on radio, television, video or via the internet will not give the appearance of speaking or acting on Don-Bur's behalf.

3.5 Information Management

Don-Bur has rigorous <u>information management systems</u> and ensures that Associates will not unlawfully disclose confidential information relating to Don-Bur companies, other organisations or our customers to third parties without consent.

3.6 Protection of Personal Information

Don-Bur respects the privacy of our customers, business contacts and Associates and has developed safeguards designed to limit access to their personal information in accordance with local privacy laws. Don-Bur safeguards private information, including personal data, lists of our customers and employees and does not authorise our Associates to share private information, unless it is done in accordance with local data protection laws and our applicable privacy policies and GDPR protocols or otherwise with permission, as appropriate.

3.7 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

Don-Bur shall endeavour to secure, maintain, and expand Don-Bur's intellectual property rights (including but not limited to patent rights, trademark rights and copyrights) and Don-Bur will respect the intellectual property rights of third parties. Don-Bur and Associates shall not intentionally infringe the intellectual property rights of others.



3.8 Management System to Implement these Principles

Don-Bur will establish a management system to implement these Principles as follows: (1) each Don-Bur Group company shall implement its own code of conduct which, together with other company rules, satisfies the standard set by these Principles and require its Associates to comply with such code;

(2) each Don-Bur Group company shall, according to its organisation, clarify the department responsible for implementation of its code of conduct;

(3) each Don-Bur Group company shall give regular training to its employees with respect to compliance with its code of conduct;

(4) each Don-Bur Group company shall perform periodic auditing to ensure conformity with these Principles; and,

(5) each Don-Bur Group company shall correct in a timely fashion any deficiencies identified by periodic audits.

The senior management at Don-Bur (Bodies & Trailers) Ltd shall be responsible for ensuring implementation of these Principles by each company of Don-Bur and the management systems as well as reviewing the status of the management system on a regular basis.

4 Quality Policy

Don-Bur (Bodies & Trailers) Ltd, (known herein as the company) is dedicated to this quality policy and will endeavour to ensure that its products and services fully meet the requirements of its customers at all times. The goal of the company is to achieve a high level of customer satisfaction at all times. Commitment to the implementation of supporting managerial and business operational systems is essential to realising that goal. It is also recognised that the business environment will have an impact on our quality policy.

The company is committed to the management of mutually beneficial relationships between clients and suppliers, working together in the implementation of this policy and in continually improving the quality of the products and/or services it supplies.

In the provision of our goods and services we will:

- 1. ensure that we fully identify and strive to meet the needs and expectations of our customers and conform to the agreed compliance standards for the products and services we supply;
- 2. assess the risk of our service/product provision processes so we can mitigate potential risks of process defects;
- ensure that our people are suitably competent to carry out their work activities to required time-scales in a manner that will not adversely affect the quality of goods/services we supply;
- 4. monitor and regularly review the business environment in which we operate and the associated internal and external issues that affect us.

To ensure that this policy is successfully implemented, our people will be responsible for identifying customer requirements and ensuring that the correct process are followed to meet those requirements.



Objectives will be set to ensure that the requirements of this policy are met, and that continual improvement is maintained in line with the spirit of the policy and the changing business environment. These objectives will be monitored during management reviews.

The commitments outlined in this quality policy and the improvement objectives will be communicated and available to all relevant interested parties at all times. Awareness training will be an integral part of the strategy to achieve the objectives.

The policy will be reviewed at regular intervals to ensure that it continues to be effective and meet customer expectations.

5 Corruption & Anti-Bribery Policy

5.1 Background

This policy applies to all members of Don-Bur. For the purposes of this policy, the term "member" means all staff including permanent, fixed term, and temporary staff.

All employees will be made aware of this policy on induction to the company. All Don-Bur employees and associates are required to act honestly, responsibly and with integrity and to safeguard the Company by operating

All contractors and agents acting for or on behalf of the Company should be made aware of this policy, particularly during any procurement process. Reasonable due diligence must be carried out to ensure they are not acting in a way contrary to our policy or procedure.

Third parties acting for us are expected to take appropriate action should it be suspected or discovered that fraudulent activity or bribery is evident.

Any employee who is found to be in breach of this policy will be subject to disciplinary procedures. Members are reminded that fraud and bribery are also criminal offences. Don-Bur also reserves the right to seek redress via civil proceedings against individuals whose fraudulent acts or omissions have resulted in financial loss to the Company.

This policy has been developed to comply with the provisions of the Bribery Act 2010.

5.2 Anti-Bribery Policy

Don-Bur does not participate in any form of bribery, fraud or corruption. We are committed to safeguard the proper use of Company finances and resources and operate a zero-tolerance policy in respect of bribery.

This means that people acting or working for us must never:

- Offer or make a bribe or solicit business by offering a bribe, unauthorised payment or inducement of any kind to anyone;
- Accept any kind of bribe, unauthorised payment or inducement that would not be lawful or authorised by us in the normal course of events.

Consolidated Ethical Policies



5.2.1 Definitions

Corruption is the misuse of public office or power for private gain, or misuse of private power in relation to business outside the realm of government.

Bribery is the means of offering, promising, giving, requesting or accepting anything of value (for example, money, gifts, hospitality, favours, information, job opportunities or any other benefit or advantage) with the purpose of improperly obtaining an advantage.

The Bribery Act 2010 introduced four offences:

- 1. Offering a bribe (applies to both individuals and corporations);
- 2. Receiving a bribe (applies to both individuals and corporations);
- 3. Bribing a foreign public official (applies to both individuals and corporations);
- 4. Failing to prevent bribery (applies to corporations only).

5.2.2 When and how to report

The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery is the responsibility of all employees. If you are in a situation and unsure whether you are being offered a bribe or are concerned your conduct could suggest you are offering a bribe, the following must be considered:

- Have I consulted the right people?
- Could I explain my actions/decision to others and feel comfortable?
- Is it consistent with the Company's behavior and way of doing business?
- Is this legal?

If the answer to any of the following questions is "no" or "don't know" then stop and seek advice from the Company Secretary before acting.

Central to the operation of this policy is transparency in our business

dealings. It is therefore imperative if you receive an offer that may be

interpreted as a bribe, a payment or inducement this must be declared to the Company.

5.2.3 The consequences of bribery

Bribery is a serious matter and a criminal offence. An individual who breaches the Bribery Act risks:

- disciplinary investigation/being dismissed from their post;
- a criminal investigation resulting in a possible prosecution and a possible custodial sentence (which could result in a custodial sentence of up to 10 years and/or an unlimited fine);
- if you benefited financially, you risk prosecutions/convictions under money laundering laws and the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002;



• if you committed the act abroad you may also be subject to that country's laws.

As a company we risk, amongst other sanctions:

- an unlimited fine;
- irreparable reputational damage.

5.3 Hospitality and Gifts

Hospitality, entertainment and gifts that are frequent, lavish or extravagant will be perceived to have influenced the recipient.

This policy is not designed to prevent staff from receiving hospitality or gifts but to set out clear guidance to avoid doubt and confusion. Hospitality and gifts should be both sensible and proportionate to the circumstances. You have an obligation to disclose the receipt of any gift/hospitality to the Company in the course of your duties.

5.3.1 Giving Gifts

An employee may not directly, or through others, offer or give any gift, hospitality, money or other thing of value to any official, employee or representative of any supplier, customer or any other organisation which if doing so could reasonably give the appearance of influencing the organisation's relationship with the Company. To do so could seriously damage our reputation and you may also be breaking the law.

Employees (if empowered to do so) may do the following:

- Give a gift of nominal value, such as stationery, pens etc., where appropriate;
- Provide meals and other entertainment at external venues provided the expenses are reasonable and approval has been given by a Director.
- Provide meals and overnight accommodation where this is reasonable and in the normal course of Company business or events.

5.3.2 Receiving Gifts and Hospitality

Staff must not accept any gifts or hospitality, regardless of value, which may influence or be perceived to be seen to influence situations such as awarding of contracts, use of Company assets or to benefit another personally or professionally.

In the course of duties, staff may find themselves in a position where they are in receipt of gifts/hospitality. In accordance with the Bribery Act 2010, received hospitality and gifts must be both sensible and proportionate

5.3.3 Acceptable gifts or hospitality

Unless you have been instructed otherwise, staff may accept the following:

• Gifts of nominal value, such as advertising gifts (such as pens, stationary etc.), when it is customarily offered to others having a similar relationship with that individual or organisation;



• Customary meals or entertainment provided that the expenses are reasonable and the meal/entertainment is within the usual course of business.

Any other gift which does not fall within the above criteria should be politely declined.

There may be occasions where you have no warning that a gift or hospitality will be offered. There are some circumstances, where to refuse a gift could cause offence to your hosts. In these circumstances, the gift/hospitality can be accepted but must be disclosed on your return.

5.3.4 Disclosing hospitality and gifts.

If you are offered hospitality or gifts, the following procedure should be used.

You must:

Disclose the offer to your line manager prior to the event and they will provide you with authorisation to attend.

In the event of any doubt about any probity of such hospitality, advice should be sought from the Company Secretary.

In exceptional circumstances a gift that is personal in nature may be retained subject to approval by the Company.

5.4 Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest is a situation where financial or other considerations could influence, or appear to influence, an employee's professional judgement, performance or decisions. Any personal relationship that affects a person's decision-making abilities or their ability to carry out their duties objectively is also a conflict of interest.

5.4.1 Obligation to report

Employees can take part in activities outside their normal jobs but are required to disclose situations to their manager that could potentially rise to become a conflict of interest. The disclosure allows finding a mutual solution to handle the situation. There is also an obligation to disclose if a relative or friend has an engagement in a company that has a business relationship with Don-Bur and his or her activities for that company could somehow be linked to your duties at Don-Bur. A formal report should be submitted if you, have any financial engagement as defined in the policy and it is, or could appear to be a conflict of interest.

5.5 Measures to Prevent Corruption

Internal audits are performed and stored to spot any potential frauds in high-risk areas. Goods are tracked from order (random selection) to ensure they physically arrive and are costed onto legitimate contracts in progress.

All expenses are signed by a Director so that there is full understanding and the highest authorisation level for items being purchased in this way.

The staff induction process includes Corruption & Bribery and Whistleblowing policies; all of which are available separately.



5.6 Whistleblowing Policy

The aim of the policy is to help employees to raise any serious concerns they may have about colleagues with confidence and without having to worry about being victimised or disadvantaged in any way as a result.

Whistleblowing is the reporting of suspected wrongdoing or dangers in relation to our activities. This includes bribery, fraud or other criminal activity, miscarriages of justice, health and safety risks, damage to the environment and any breach of legal or professional obligations.

Employees should not hesitate to "speak up" or "blow the whistle" if they believe malpractice may be occurring.

Individuals may be anxious that, by reporting genuine whistleblowing concerns, their actions may leave them vulnerable. It is important to emphasise that Don—Bur as an organisation will not tolerate the victimisation, intimidation or penalisation of anyone raising a genuine concern, anyone involved in the subsequent investigation or anyone acting as a witness.

Concerns should, in the first instance, be taken to an appropriate Director. All concerns will be investigated and dealt with as appropriate. The Director involved will ensure that the shareholders are informed and are involved as appropriate. The staff member who raised the concern or issue will be informed of the outcome of the investigations and what, if any, action has been taken.

If the staff member is unhappy about the speed, conduct or outcome of the investigation, they should put their concerns in writing to the Chairman.

Under this policy the disclosure must be made to an appropriate Director. The person making the claim must have reasonable belief that wrongdoing is being or is about to be committed. There must be reasonable belief that for it to be substantially true and that the disclosure is in the public interest.

The person making the claim should not collect the information to support the allegations improperly.

Where it is found that the whistle—blower makes an allegation:

Maliciously, or does not act in the public interest

Without having reasonable grounds for believing it to be substantially true

Collects the information to support the allegations improperly

Makes an allegation for personal or 3rd party gain

They will be subject to formal disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal and in some cases may be subject to criminal investigation where illegality has occurred in order to achieve those aims.



6 Anti-Slavery Policy

This statement is made on behalf of the board of Don-Bur (Bodies & Trailers) Limited with regards to the Modern Slavery Act 2015. The Act requires large employers to be transparent about their efforts to eradicate Slavery and Human Trafficking within their supply chain.

We have been a supplier of Bodies and Trailers to the transport industry for 35 years, also providing Repairs and Services to operators within the industry. Our company is based at three different sites within Stoke-on-Trent.

6.1 March 2021

Over the last 12 months the whole business focus shifted to survival with the ravaging effects of the Covid 19 pandemic.

The bulk of our workforce were on furlough leave from March 2020 for several months, with a ban on unnecessary travelling in force thereafter. Our plans to visit suppliers were therefore stopped in their tracks, but will resume once a more normal way of working resumes.

6.2 March 2019

We have, since our last statement, continued to develop our commitment to improving practices that ensure there is no slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or any other part of our business. The products we sell are sourced mainly from the UK, but are manufactured in many different countries, and include many well-known branded products. We aim to ensure that these values are upheld across all of our supply chain.

To achieve this, we are assessing areas of our business where there could be potential risks of modern slavery within our supply chain. Over the last year we have begun to develop and implement systems and controls to review and monitor compliance with our policy.

6.2.1 Supplier Correspondence

We purchase products from UK and European-based supplier companies, many of whom are part of larger global organisations. These organisations acknowledge and generally publish their commitment to anti-slavery practices.

We have presented our major and high risk suppliers with a copy of our Anti-Slavery policy, with the expectation that their own policies and the policies of their own suppliers meet our same high standard. We are now actively corresponding with our major suppliers, requesting their anti-slavery (and ethical) policies and statements and seeking positive confirmation of their commitment to compliance with our standards.

We will assess any instances of non-compliance if and when they arise, and take the appropriate action to remedy such non-compliance. If we find serious breaches to our core policy our suppliers have been informed that we will instantly seek an alternative supply route.

6.2.2 Supplier Visits

Consolidated Ethical Policies



Our materials are sourced from manufacturers in several countries around the globe and are often manufactured to our own specification and design. As at 31 March 2019 we had active relationships with circa 250 core suppliers, predominantly in the UK and Europe.

To help ensure that we aren't involved in modern slavery or the infringement of human rights in any way we have started to conduct our own independent inspections of third-party facilities involved in the manufacture of products that we use. During these inspections we will carry out extensive checks and produce written 'factory inspection' reports.

We have begun documenting such supplier checks and have recently visited key suppliers as far away as Asia to ensure our standards are met.

Checks will include:

- Working environment Ventilation, lighting, cleanliness, temperature
- Working hours of factory employees
- Machinery & equipment standards and guards
- Safety equipment including firefighting equipment and first aid kits
- PPE & training
- Emergency exits & signage
- Staff facilities
- Factory certification

6.3 March 2018

Our Supply chains are predominantly based in the UK and we are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking within our supply chains or in any part of our business.

We are committed to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains.

As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk, we are contacting our supplier base in relation to slavery and human trafficking. We will make our best efforts to ensure that we only work with suppliers who acknowledge their obligations towards modern slavery.

The system we are putting in place will:

- Identify and assess potential risk areas in our supply chains.
- Mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our supply chains.
- Monitor risk areas in our supply chains.



7 Supply Chain Code of Conduct

Don- Bur is fully committed to doing things the right way. This means being true to our values and standards, working with integrity and supporting each other along the way right across the supply chain.

7.1 Impact on the Supply Chain

Don-Bur sources products and services for its distribution and sales operations from several countries around the world. We recognise that there are local and national differences in standards in relation to many aspects of the manufacturing and wider business environment. However, we also recognise that there are a number of minimum standards that must be achieved by all. Don-Bur has a supply chain policy and expects all Don-Bur businesses and employees to comply with it.

7.2 Policy Commitments – Don-Bur's Requirement of Suppliers

It is Don-Bur's policy only to work with suppliers that meet or exceed the following requirements:

- Employees of our suppliers shall work hours that comply with national laws.
- All our suppliers shall take responsibility to protect the health and safety of their employees. Suppliers must control hazards and take the best precautions against accident and occupational diseases.
- No children are to be employed by Don-Bur's suppliers. We support the long-term objective to eliminate child labour consistent with the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child.
- Suppliers will comply with all appropriate local legislation.
- All our suppliers shall protect the environment to minimise environmental pollution and make continuous improvements in environmental protection.
- All suppliers to provide, on request, product compliance information; including (but not limited to); EU Reach and UN compliance declarations.
- Employees of our suppliers shall be paid wages and benefits for a standard working week that meet or exceed minimum national requirements.
- No forced, bonded or involuntary prison labour will be used.

Failure to comply with any agreed improvement plan would result in review and possible termination of the contract. Don-Bur companies must have appropriate checks in place to ensure that suppliers meet or exceed these requirements.



7.3 Policy Commitments – Don-Bur's Commitment to Suppliers

Don-Bur commits to the following in relation to purchasing and supply chain activities: Supplier Business Practices.

Don-Bur will not use another party to perform a task that Don-Bur company employees are not permitted to perform.

Don-Bur will ensure that agents or any other representatives acting on the company's behalf know about applicable company policies when working for Don-Bur.

7.3.1 Purchasing Business Practices

Procurement processed will rely on factual, objective information, based on materials that are provided to all relevant suppliers. This process will not discriminate against a potential supplier based on improper considerations, such as its management's gender, race, nationality or age. In addition, Don-Bur will support our customers' diversity agenda by providing information on minorities as requested.

Don-Bur will use a procurement process that is fair and seeks the best value for the cost of purchases.

7.3.2 Business Partners Review

Don-Bur will conduct appropriate reviews of potential business partners to ensure that the level of risk is appropriate for the business. Reviews should consider assessment of information relevant to the anticipated relationship with the potential partner, which may include financial soundness, legal matters, employment practices and ethics and compliance.

7.3.3 Fair & Ethical Dealings

Don-Bur employees will conduct business fairly, and never misrepresent themselves, the company or its products or services. Employees will not try to obtain advantage through dishonest, corrupt or other fraudulent or unlawful activities.

7.3.4 Fair Competition

Don-Bur will ensure fair competition in its supply chain at all times, avoiding fixing prices or rigging purchasing bids.

7.4 Reporting of Breaches and Accountability

Any employee or business partner who becomes aware of any existing or potential breach of this policy is required to notify Don-Bur promptly.

7.5 Enquiries

All enquiries in relation to this policy or its applicability to particular situations should be addressed to the HR department.

Consolidated Ethical Policies



8 Data Security & Protection

8.1 Computers and IT – GDPR

8.1.1 Endpoint and network security

All endpoints are part of a secure Microsoft active directory system with password and data access policies in place.

Operating system updates and security patches are centrally managed and deployed daily to all endpoints.

Network access is granted dependent on the user's access level and permissions set and controlled by the IT department.

Physical access to server comms rooms is restricted to selected senior management and is protected via keycode locks.

All company data is backed up and replicated every night to 2 secure site locations.

Gateway security is managed by firewall devices at all sites with the below features:

- IPS & Application Control
- Antivirus \ Anti-Malware
- Web Filtering
- Anti-Spam Filtering
- Secure SSL VPN

File\Data security is handled by industry standard file audit software that monitors and reports on all file access across all network data.

Endpoint security is managed by centrally managed and updated by endpoint protection with the below features:

Antivirus \ Anti-Malware protection against.

- Ransomware
- Mobile malware
- Advanced threats
- File less threats
- PowerShell & script-based attacks
- Web threats



Email is protected on several layers:

- Remote smart host with anti-spam and antivirus\anti malware filtering
- Gateway protection with anti-spam and antivirus\anti malware filtering
- Endpoint protection with antivirus\anti malware filtering

Utilising different systems will ensure maximum protection using multiple definitions.

8.1.2 Software

Employees must use only software that is authorised by Don-Bur Group on Don-Bur Group computers\systems. All software on Don-Bur Group computers must be approved or installed by the Don-Bur Group IT department.

8.1.3 Password Policy

All devices are controlled by Active directory and the following policy is forced:

- Minimum password length of 7 characters and of a "complex" format
- Maximum password age of 90 days

Users are informed to the below conditions regards passwords via a company AUP policy:

- Not allow anyone else to use their user ID and password on any Don-Bur Group IT systems.
- Not leave their user accounts logged in at an unattended and unlocked computer.
- Not use someone else's user ID and password to access Don-Bur Group IT systems.
- Not leave their password unprotected (for example writing it down).

8.1.4 Remote working

See the relevant section in the company AUP policy:

8.1.5 Mobile Storage Devices

See the <u>relevant section</u> in the company AUP policy:

8.2 Don-Bur Group IT Policy (AUP)

This Acceptable Usage Policy covers the security and use of all Don-Bur Group information and IT equipment. It also includes the use of email, internet, voice and mobile IT equipment.

This policy applies to all Don-Bur Group employees, contractors and agents (hereafter referred to as 'individuals').

This policy applies to all information, in whatever form, relating to Don-Bur Group business activities worldwide, and to all information handled by Don-Bur Group relating to other



organisations with whom it deals. It also covers all IT and information communications facilities operated by Don-Bur Group or on its behalf.

8.2.1 Computer Access Control – Individual's Responsibility

Access to the Don-Bur Group IT systems is controlled by the use of User IDs and passwords. All User IDs and passwords are to be uniquely assigned to named individuals and consequently, individuals are accountable for all actions on the Don-Bur Group's IT systems.

Individuals must not:

- Allow anyone else to use their user ID and password on any Don-Bur Group IT systems.
- Leave their user accounts logged in at an unattended and unlocked computer.
- Use someone else's user ID and password to access Don-Bur Group IT systems.
- Leave their password unprotected (for example writing it down).
- Perform any unauthorised changes to Don-Bur Group IT systems or information.
- Attempt to access data that they are not authorised to use or access.
- Exceed the limits of their authorisation or specific business need to interrogate the system or data.
- Connect any non-Don-Bur Group authorised device to the Don-Bur Group network or IT systems.
- Store Don-Bur Group data on any non-authorised Don-Bur Group equipment.
- Give or transfer Don-Bur Group data or software to any person or organisation outside Don-Bur Group without the authority of Don-Bur Group.

8.2.2 Internet and Email Conditions of Use

Use of Don-Bur Group internet and email is intended for business use. Personal use is permitted only during break times where such use does not affect the individual's business performance, is not detrimental to Don-Bur Group in any way, not in breach of any term and condition of employment and does not place the individual or Don-Bur Group in breach of statutory or other legal obligations.

All individuals are accountable for their actions on the internet and email systems.

Individuals must not:

- Use the internet or email for the purposes of harassment or abuse.
- Use profanity, obscenities, or derogatory remarks in communications.
- Access, download, send or receive any data (including images), which Don-Bur Group considers offensive in any way, including sexually explicit, discriminatory, defamatory or libellous material.



- Use the internet or email to make personal gains or conduct a personal business.
- Use the internet or email to gamble.
- Use the email systems in a way that could affect its reliability or effectiveness, for example distributing chain letters or spam.
- Place any information on the Internet that relates to Don-Bur Group, alter any information about it, or express any opinion about Don-Bur Group, unless they are specifically authorised to do this.
- Send unprotected sensitive or confidential information externally.
- Forward Don-Bur Group mail to personal (non-Don-Bur Group) email accounts (for example a personal Hotmail account).
- Make official commitments through the internet or email on behalf of Don-Bur Group unless authorised to do so.
- Download copyrighted material such as music media (MP3) files, film and video files (not an exhaustive list) without appropriate approval.
- In any way infringe any copyright, database rights, trademarks or other intellectual property.
- Download any software from the internet without prior approval of the IT Department.
- Connect Don-Bur Group devices to the internet using non-standard connections.

8.2.3 Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy

In order to reduce the risk of unauthorised access or loss of information, Don-Bur Group enforces a clear desk and screen policy as follows:

- Computers must be logged off/locked or protected with a screen locking mechanism controlled by a password when unattended.
- Care must be taken to not leave confidential material on printers, desks or photocopiers.
- All confidential business-related printed matter must be disposed of using confidential waste bins or shredders.

8.2.4 Remote working

It is accepted that laptops and mobile devices will be taken off-site. The following controls must be applied:

• The loss of any device must be reported to the Don-Bur IT department immediately, the device can then be deactivated and access to any data ceased.



- Care must be taken when connecting to public access points "hotspots" that do not require a logon\password as transmitted data will be unencrypted. The access point may be malicious or being manipulated by an attacker.
- Particular care should be taken with the use of mobile devices such as laptops, mobile phones, smartphones and tablets. They must be protected at least by a password or PIN\fingerprint.
- Equipment and media taken off-site must not be left unattended in public places and not left in sight in a car\vehicle.
- Laptops must be carried as hand luggage when travelling.
- Information should be protected against loss or compromise when working remotely (for example at home or in public places).

8.2.5 Mobile Storage Devices

Mobile devices such as memory sticks, CDs, DVDs and removable hard drives are used only in situations when network connectivity is unavailable or there is no other secure method of transferring data. Information should be protected against loss or compromise and only used for non-confidential data.

8.2.6 Software

Employees must use only software that is authorised by Don-Bur Group on Don-Bur Group computers\systems. Authorised software must be used in accordance with the software supplier's licensing agreements. All software on Don-Bur Group computers must be approved or installed by the Don-Bur Group IT department.

Individuals must not:

Store personal files (such as music, video, photographs or games) on Don-Bur Group IT equipment.

8.2.7 Viruses

The IT department has implemented centralised, automated virus detection and virus software updates within the Don-Bur Group. All PCs have antivirus software installed to detect and remove any virus automatically.

Individuals must not:

- Remove or disable anti-virus software.
- Attempt to remove virus-infected files or clean up an infection, other than by the use of approved Don-Bur Group anti-virus software and procedures.

8.2.8 Telephony Voice and mobile data Equipment Conditions of Use

Use of Don-Bur Group equipment is intended for business use. Individuals must not use Don-Bur Group voice\data facilities for sending or receiving private communications on personal matters or other personal use except in authorised circumstances. All non-urgent personal

Consolidated Ethical Policies



communications should be made at an individual's own expense, in their own time, and using alternative means of communications.

Individuals must not:

- Use Don-Bur Group voice\data equipment for conducting private business.
- Make hoax or threatening calls to internal or external destinations.
- Accept reverse charge calls from domestic or international operators, unless it is for business use and authorised.

8.2.9 Actions upon Termination of Contract

All Don-Bur Group equipment and data, for example laptops and mobile devices including telephones, smartphones, USB memory devices and CDs/DVDs, must be returned to Don-Bur Group at termination of contract.

All Don-Bur Group data or intellectual property developed or gained during the period of employment remains the property of Don-Bur Group and must not be retained beyond termination or reused for any other purpose.

8.2.10 Monitoring and Filtering

All data that is created and stored on Don-Bur Group computers is the property of Don-Bur Group and there is no official provision for individual data privacy, however wherever possible Don-Bur Group will avoid opening personal emails.

IT system logging will take place where appropriate, and investigations will be commenced where reasonable suspicion exists of a breach of this or any other policy. Don-Bur Group has the right (under certain conditions) to monitor activity on its systems, including internet and email use, in order to ensure systems security and effective operation, and to protect against misuse.

Any monitoring will be carried out in accordance with current legislation.

It is your responsibility to report suspected breaches of security policy without delay to the IT department.

All breaches of information security policies will be investigated. Where investigations reveal misconduct, disciplinary action may follow in line with Don-Bur Group disciplinary procedures.

8.3 Data Protection Policy

This Precedent is an internal-facing data protection policy for use in relation to employees or other workers and contractors. It takes into account the more extensive requirements under General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), which came into effect on 25 May 2018, those proposed in the Data Protection Bill (DPB) and the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO) guide to the GDPR. It identifies, at a high level:

• how the employer complies with its obligations under the GDPR, in particular the data protection principles which the employer, as a data controller, is required to follow



- how staff are expected to handle personal data and sensitive personal data
- the role of the data protection officer, if there is one
- the need for staff to seek further guidance from the data protection officer or other role holder or department if they have any queries or if they are dealing with complex situations, the scope of which is beyond the remit of this policy, and
- the consequences of breach

Employers are required to implement appropriate technical and organisational measures that ensure and demonstrate that they process personal information in accordance with GDPR. The ICO guidance indicates that this may include internal data protection policies such as staff training, internal audits of processing activities, and reviews of internal HR policies.

This Precedent is not a data protection policy of the type that a company would wish to make routinely available to third parties, as it focuses on data protection issues relevant to the processing of staff information, rather than customer/client information.

In most cases, the employer will already have a data protection policy and this precedent will need to be introduced as a replacement.

We recommend that the draft policy should be discussed with employee representatives or a representative sample of employees before it is introduced.

We also recommend that the policy should be discussed with new employees as part of their induction process and with existing employees as part of a data protection training programme. The policy should also be made available in the staff handbook and/or on the employer's staff intranet. However, the employer should choose whatever method(s) it considers most effective, in light of the organisation's 'house style' and HR approach.

This Precedent assumes that the employer:

- does not employ children
- does not carry out profiling or any other form of automated decision-making
- does not record events, movements or driving behaviour in any vehicle the employees drive
- does not monitor home or remote working, or employee devices used for work under a Bring Your Own Device (BYOD) policy, or use Mobile Device Management (MDM) services

If you consider that you do have a lawful basis to carry out profiling and/or automated decision-making, ICO guidance recommends that this should be documented in its data protection policy.

8.3.1 Data Protection Clause

We will collect and process personal data and sensitive personal data (also known as 'special categories of personal data') [and criminal records data] relating to you in accordance with our data protection policy and our data protection privacy notice contained in the Employee Handbook.



You confirm that you have read and understood the data protection policy of the Company. You will comply with your obligations under our data protection policy and other relevant policies

The Company is entitled to make changes to its data protection policy but will notify employees in writing of any such changes.

We may monitor staff in accordance with our policies relating to email, internet and communications systems and monitoring at work, contained in our Employee Handbook.

Failure to comply with the data protection policy or any of the policies listed above in this clause 20 may be dealt with under our disciplinary procedure and, in serious cases, may be treated as gross misconduct leading to summary dismissal.

8.3.2 Data Protection Privacy Notice to Employees

A Data Protection Privacy Notice is issued to all Employees which details, among other items, GDPR.

8.4 Physical Security for HR Documentation Storage

Our physical records are secured with the highest security padlock available on the market.

8.5 Records Retention

Don-Bur operates a system of secure physical document storage. We keep records in line with statutory guidance, and a full register of all documents stored by box location is maintained in the accounts department.

8.6 Disposal of Confidential Waste

Chaffinch Document		DESTRUCTION ERTIFICATE DATE: 31-08-2022 OB REFERENCE: 15415	Don-Bur uses traceable 3 rd party services to dispose of confidential waste.
The Tilenocks Bigrown Street Stake-or-Treet 5174 40.1 Company Registration Namber 04949803 To 19726 4713 E. infogdnatfinchocument on uk W. www.shuffinchocument on uk	- DONBO1 Don Bur Mossfield Rul State-on-Trent ST3 68W Andrew Bushnell		Latest example (30 th August 2022) shown left:
DESTRUCTION TYPE	DATE OF COLLECTION 30-08-2022	QUANTITY 1	
Signed: WHAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA			
SECURELY AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE A CERTIFICATE IS EMAILED, AND SIGNING IS	ISTITUTES THAT THE QUANTITIES CONTAINES PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL DATA PROTE INOT POSSIBLE, IT SHALL BE CONSIDERED O INED IT MUST BE RAKED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF	CTION REGULATION 2018. WHEREVER COMPLETE AND VALID UPON RECEIPT	
SIC CODE (2007) 73898911 WASTE CARRIER WEX079482 VAT Registration Number: 113.412	REGISTRATION CBDU183199 EWC CODE 20 23 69	01 01 EXEMPTION REFERENCE	



9 IT Disaster Recovery Plan – DRP

9.1 Contacts:

Phillip Middleton (Group IT Manager) 07525907830

D2NA (3RD PARTY SUPPORT COMPANY) 0330 159 5969

9.2 Server infrastructure

Don Bur group have a Virtual server environment hosted on Dell blade servers with VMWare replication of all business-critical servers to two separate locations. Virtual servers are replicated every night to two different DR Sites\VMware hosts. Replicated systems can easily be brought online if there is an issue with live server\servers either at the main site or remote site. This gives us Local server replication and replication to our remote site 1.2 miles away.

Each server can be brought online instantly if required.

In the event of an issue with a live single server at Mossfield Road a replica can be brought online on the Mossfield Road DR server.

In the event of complete failure of the live server host in the Mossfield Road server room all business-critical servers can be brought online on the Mossfield Road DR host.

In the event of complete failure of the main server room and DR building at Mossfield Rd all business-critical servers can be brought online on the Clarence Road DR host.

As we have one internal domain across all sites user's PC's can be relocated if required giving the same level of access without any reconfiguration.

9.3 Backups

Daily backups are performed on all Mossfield Road servers daily with a retention of 28 days for single file\folder restore to the DR building. Files\folders can also be restored if required from the replica servers hosted in the DR building and the Clarence Road site.

Servers located at remote sites (Clarence Road $\$ Boothen Road) are backed up daily with a retention of 21 days to an offsite location (Mossfield Rd)

9.4 Internet Connection

Internet connections are handled via the below:

Leased line connection into main server room (Mossfield Rd)

GEA fibre into main server room (Mossfield Rd backup line)

Fibre connection into DR building (Mossfield Rd) to be utilised if the server room is not available

Consolidated Ethical Policies



Leased line connection into Clarence Road server room (for live use and DR use)

Leased line connection into Boothen Road site

9.5 Email systems

Business email is directed to an offsite smart host via MX records before being directed Microsoft 365 (this will cache mail up to 96 hours and is fully available even if Microsoft email servers are offline).

Email is fully available from any "internet" enabled device as hosted in the "cloud".

As Mail records point to a smart host we have instant control over mail delivery flow in a DR situation.

Full recovery guide is in IT documentation and with 3rd party support.

Document updated 01/01/2022

Phil Middleton (Group IT Manager)

10 ICO Registration



Don-Bur is registered with the ICO, reference# Z9305034, Tier 3.

A Bushnell Finance Director 20.10.22



11 Safe Contractor Scheme

The Don-Bur service division frequently interact with external 3rd party sites and, in 2022, Don-Bur were awarded the widely accepted Alcumus SafeContractor accreditation which is used to transparently demonstrate the safe processes and high standard of documentation carried out by our contractors on site.

Health & Safety Product: Motor Vehicle & Heavy Plant Fitter





12 Materials Management

12.1 REACH

A number of products come under REACH regulations. An example for paint is shown below:

Mark Oxer Don Bur (Bodies & Traile	ers Ltd.),			HMG Pai	nts Ltd rside Works		A	ttachment	1		
Mossfield Road, Adderley Green, Lonton,				Coll Tel: Main 0 Tel: Sales 0' Fox: 0' Email: sales@hr Online: www.hr	yhurst Road Manchester M40 7RU 161 205 7631 161 202 2277	Substance Name N-(hydroxymethyl)acrylamide	EC Number 213-103-2	CAS Number 924-42-5	Date of inclusion 10/06/2022	Reason for Inclusion Carcinogenic (Article	Decision Number D(2022)4187-DC
Stoke-on-Trent ST3 5BW				Fax: 01 Email: sales@hr Online: www.br	161 205 4829 ngpaint.com					57a) Mutagenic (Article 57b)	
Dear Mark						tris(2-methoxyethoxy)vinylsilane	213-934-0	255881-	17/01/2022	Toxic for reproduction (Article 57c) PBT (Article 57d)	D(2021)10043-D
We refer to your recent en	anin concern	ning our pro-	hate	23 rd November 2	022	S-(tricyclo(5.2.1.0'2.6)deca-3-en-8(or 9)-yl O- (isopropyl or isoburyl or 2-ethylhexyl) O- (isopropyl or isoburyl or 2-ethylhexyl) phosphorodithioate	401-850-9	255881- 94-8	17/01/2022	PB1 (Article 5/d)	D(2021)10043-D
The EU Regulation 1				ation Authorization	and	X4261 6,6'-di-tert-butyl-2,2'-methylenedi-p-cresol	204-327-1	119-47-1	17/01/2022	Toxic for reproduction (Article 57c)	D(2021)10043-D
Restriction of Chemical evaluate all proposals c identification of Substanc Annex XV. Once agre Substances of Very High REACH Annex XIV - the	s" (REACH) of Member 9 es of Very Hi sed, these su Concern for List of Subst) requires t State Comp igh Concern bstances are Authorisatio tances Subjec	he Europea etent Autho (SVHCs) in e included n and thus ct to Author	an Chemicals Agency prities or ECHA for accordance with REA4 in the Candidate List considered for inclusion isation.	to the CH, of n in	(b).1,77-timethyl-34(4- methylphenyljmethylene]bicyclo(2.2.1]heptar -2-one covering any of the individual isomers and/or combunations thereof (4-MBC) (3E).1,77-timethyl-34.4- methylbenzylidene)bicyclo(2.2.1]heptan-2- one EC No.: (CAS No.: 1728069-81-1 (1R.E.4S)-1,77-timethyl-3-(4- methylbenzylidene)bicyclo(2.2.1]heptan-2-		-	17/01/2022	Endocrime disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - human health)	D(2021)10043-D
We have reviewed our p Candidate List (see attach Based on our current knn data sheets) provided to th Acrythane Colours, Acr Colours, 9056 Hardener Thinners, 2711 Thinner substances included in th	ment 1). owledge of the company b ythane Ultra , 9047 Harde rs, and 5006	nese product y its raw ma Colours, C ener, 9098 H Fade Out	s and the in terial suppli oach Enam (ardener, 2) Thinners	nformation (such as sa ers; EPC Primers, 4G el Colours, PVC2017 K Accelerator, 2426 M do not contain any of	fety IJ the	one EC No.: - [CAS No.: 9542-41-9 (18.32, 48), 17, -trimethyl-3-(4- methylbenzylidene)bicyclo[2.2] lbpetan-2- one EC No.: - [CAS No.: 852541-25-4 (2), 17, J-trimethyl-3-[(4- methylphenyl)methylene]bicyclo[2, 2] lbpetan -2-one EC No.: 235-242-4 [CAS No.: 36861- 47-9 (18, 455), 17, -trimethyl-3-(4-	ı				
concentration values esta whichever is the lower. Do not hesitate to contact	blished by th	ie EU Regul	ation 1907	/2006/EC, or above 0.	1%,	methylbenzylidene)bicyclo[2.2.1]heptan-2- one EC No.: - [CAS No.: 741687-98-9 (18.3E,4R)-1,7.7+trumethyl-3-(4- methylbenzylidene)bicyclo[2.2.1]heptan-2- one EC No.: - [CAS No.: 852541-30-1 (1R.3Z,4S)-1,7.7+trumethyl-3-(4-					
Yours						methylbenzylidene)bicyclo[2.2.1]heptan-2- one EC No.: - CAS No.: 852541-21-0					L
	1/2	14.		///	~ /	169					
 n) with C12-rich branched alkyl chains ligomerisation, covering any individual s and/ or combinations thereof (PDDP) 			08/07/2021	Toxic for reproduction (Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - environment)	D(2021)4569-DC	Disobatyl philalate	201-553-2	84-69-5	13/01/2010	Toxic for reproduction (article 570) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - human health)	C(2017)4462 ED30/2017 ED168/2009
n) with C12-rich branched alkyl chains ligomerisation, covering any individual s and/ or combinations thereof (PDDP) 4. dodecyl-, branched EC No.: 310-154- 8 No.: 121158-58-5 4. (tetrapropenyl) derivatives EC No.: - fo.: 74499-35-7 4. dodecyl: branched EC No.: - CAS			08/07/2021	(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting	D(2021)4569-DC	Anthracene oil, anthracene paste	292-603-2	90640-81- 6	13/01/2010	(article 57c) Endocrine disrupting	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009
n) with C12-rich branched alkyl chains ignomerisation, covering any individual s and/or combinations thereof (PDDP) d dodcyl, branched EC No. 310-154- S No. 121158-58-5 (ic tetrapropersyl) derivatives EC No.: - Ca 74499-33-7 (ic tetrapropersyl), branched EC No.: - CAS 10555-94-5 odecylphenol EC No.: - CAS No.: 10-5 (it tetrapropylene- EC No.: - CAS No.:			08/07/2021	(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - environment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) -	D(02)/4569-DC	Anthracene oil, anthracene paste Sodium dichromate	292-603-2 234-190-3	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9	13/01/2010 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrime disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - human health) Carcinogenic ² , mutagenic ² , PBT and vPvB (articles 57a, 57b, 57d and 57c). Carcinogenic, mutagenic and toxic for reproduction (articles	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009 ED/67/2008
a) with C12-rich branched alkyl chains ignormation, covering any individual stand: or combinations thereof (PDDP) stand: or combinations thereof (PDDP) No. 121158-58-5 () tetrapropenyl) derivatives EC No.: - [or, 74499-35-7 () descriptioned EC No.: - [CAS No.: descylptioned EC No.: - [CAS No.:), tetrapropelates-EC No.: - [CAS No.: 55-1] () 4-stodotecyl, EC No.: - [CAS No.: 55-1]			08/07/2021	(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - environment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) -	D2021/4569-DC	Anthracene oil, anthracene paste Sodium dichromate 5-tert-butyl-2.4.6-trimitro-m-xylene (musik	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - human health) Carcinogenic ² , mutagenic ² , PBT and vPvB (articles 57a, 57b, and 57c) Carcinogenic, mutagenic and toxic for reproduction (articles 57a, 57b and 57c) vPvB (article 57c)	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008
n) with C12-nch branched ality(1 chains ignorenisation, covering any individual s and or combinations thereof (PDDP) does(-), branched EC No.: 1-(15- No.:121155-85- (ietraproperty)) derivatives EC No.: - (c.: 74409-53). Januached EC No.: - (CAS 05554-5). does(-tyhena) EC No.: - (CAS No.: 10- 57- 57-	-		08/07/2021	(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - envronment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - human health	D(02)4569-DC D(02)4569-DC	Authencere oil, anfaracere paste Sodium dichronate S-stribusyl-2,4,6-trainto-m-xylene (mask xylene) 4,4 - Daminodighenyhmethane (MDA)	292-603-2 234-190-3	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9	13/01/2010 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - human health) Carcinogenic ² , mutagenic ² , PBT and vPvB (articles 57a, 57b, and 75d and 57c) Carcinogenic, mutagenic and toxic for reproduction (articles 57a, 57b and 57c) vPvB (article 57c) Carcinogenic (article 57a)	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009 ED/67/2008
a) with C12 ach branched ally channes inguerrate resolution and the compared of the inguerrate resolution and the compared and the second second second second second second temporal second second second second second (second secon	-	-		(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) - environment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(f) -		Ambracene oil, ambracene paste Sodium dickromate Stert-buryl, 2,4,6-trainto-m: sylene (musik sylene) Arr. Diaminodiphenylmethine (MDA) Burthreyhynde (DBO) Tirsthyl ansmate	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 200-268-0 427-700-2	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 56-35-9 15606-95- 8	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrine dissupting properties (Article 57(6) - human health) Carcinogenic ² , mutagenic ² , PBT and vPrB (articles 57a, 57b, 75d and 37c) Carcinogenic mutagenic reproduction (orticles 57a, 57b and 57c) vPvB (article 57a) vPvB (article 57a) Carcinogenic (article 57a)	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008
u) with C12-rich branched allyd channe ignorrasition, covering any addivabal (and covering and covering) and covering (and covering) and covering and covering (and (BBG)) and covering and covering and covering and covering (and (BBG)) and covering and covering and covering and covering (and (BBG)) and covering and covering and covering and covering and covering (and (BBG)) and covering and cov		-		(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - envronment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - human health		Authracene oil, aufuracene pase Sofium dichronate Stati-buryl, 2:4.6-trainin-on-cylene (mosk xylene) 4.4-Daminoidperpylanethane (MDA) Bis(mbarylan)oside (TBTO) Tarefayl ansmate Diburyl phthalates (DBP)	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 200-268-0 427.700-2 201-557-4	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 36-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrane drughts, 57(f) Imman health): Carcanogenei, 1 mmtigenei, 2 PBT and VPB (article 57a, 57b, 57b, 57b, 57b, 57b, 57b, 57b, 57b	ED/30/2017 ED/68/2009 ED/68/2009 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008 ED/67/2008
a) with C12 ach branched ally channes inguerrate relation, consequence (2007) and consequence (2007) account proceedings of (2007) and (2007) account of the consequence (2007) (2007		-		(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - envronment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - human health		Authancene oil, aufuracene paste Sodium dichromate Sono dayl: 2,4.5 strainto-m-xylene (mosk zyleno) Jamoni Jamongheny hanethane (MDA) Haftynburythinychade (TBTO) Tiereftyl arwante Dibroyl phthalane (DBP) Dibroyl to troude	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 202-268-0 427-700-2 201-557-4 201-557-4	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 56-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57c) Endocrine drugging Endocrine drugging (article) (article) (article) (article) (artenapping), (article)	ED:60/2017 ED:68/2009 ED:68/2009 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 C(2017)4462 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008
u) with C12-ach branched ally channes ignormastinos, covering any individual generations, covering any individual (addec)+, branched EC No.: 110-154- SNO: 121158-58- (interargopent) derivatives EC No.: -1 (CAS No: 12163-58- (interproprise)- EC No.: -1 (CAS No: 10.5 interproprise)- EC No: 10.5 interpropr		-		(Article 57c) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - envronment) Endocrine disrupting properties (Article 57(t) - human health		Authencene oil, anfancene paste Sodium dichronate Sodium dichronate Sodium dichronate Sodium dichronate Sodium dichronate Sodium dichronate Differing dichronate Differing dichronate Differing dichronate Dannenic trioxide Authencese Alleness, CI-D-13, dalore (Short Cham	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 200-268-0 427.700-2 201-557-4	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 36-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	ED:30/2017 ED:68/2009 ED:68/2009 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008 ED:67/2008
a) with C12-ach branched ally channes ignormarismic, orcenting any individual inguerrarismic, orcenting any individual choice(y-), branched ECNo.: 110-134- SNO: 121158-84- (https://panellect.CNO.: 1/ choice(y-), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 12168-84- (addex), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 12168-84- (addex), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 1216- 35-1 (addex), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 1216- 35-1 (addex), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 1216- 127-di orden and the addex), branched ECNO.: 1/ CAS No: 1216- (add.No: 2217- add.No: 1216- (add.No: 1216- (add.N		-	08/07/2021	(Antice 57c) Electricito Argunda Statistica Electricito Argunda Statistica environmento) Endocume doscripting properties (Anticle 57(r)- banana beath Tossi: for respondention (Anticle 57c) PBT (Anticle 57d)	D(2021)4569-DC	Authancene oil, aufuracene paste Sodium dichromate Sono dayl: 2,4.5 strainto-m-xylene (mosk zyleno) Jamoni Jamongheny hanethane (MDA) Haftynburythinychade (TBTO) Tiereftyl arwante Dibroyl phthalane (DBP) Dibroyl to troude	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 200-68-0 427-700-2 201-557-4 215-481-4 204-371-1	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10538-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3 120-12-7	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	ED 49/2017 ED 68/2009 ED 68/2009 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008
a) whit C12 etc. bit method ally channes ignormastines, correcting any index/091 of detectyl-branched EC No.: 1101-14- No.: 12115-8-85 (intergroups)) derivatives EC No.: -1 (A detectyl, hermatole EC No.: -1 (CAS No.: 553-46 detectyl, hermatole EC No.: -1 CAS No.: 554-46 detectyl, hermatole EC No.: -1 (CAS No.: 574-46 detyl, hermatole EC No.: -1 (CAS No.: 574-47 detyl, hermatole EC No.: -1 co.: 2454-04-2 or: 2454-04-2 (CAS No.: 1347-47 detyl, hermatole EC No.: 215-604-1 (a) 1333-73 erie acid, useling and factor (11) EC exclass No.: 1248-58 (CAS No.: 1348-47 det No.: 1248-58 (CAS No.: 1348-67 (CAS No.: 1348-67) unstanto-termatole approximation (CAS No.: 1348-67 det (EBO)), sochum and EC No.: 215- det 1313-73 erie acid, andmin and EC No.: 215- det 1313-73 (CAS No.: 1348-67 (CAS NO.: 1	-		08/07/2021	(Antice 57c) Electricito Argunda Statistica Electricito Argunda Statistica environmento) Endocume doscripting properties (Anticle 57(r)- banana beath Tossi: for respondention (Anticle 57c)	D(2021)4569-DC	Authracene oil, aufuracene pase Sodium dichromate Sodium dichromate Sterk-buryl, 2:4.6-trainito-un-xylene (mosk xylene). 4.4 - Daminoidyberyhanchane (MDA) Bistenberyhinjonde (TBTO) Tareflyi ascenate Dibroyl phthalate (DBP) Darvenic trioxide Authracene Aktorese (Ch-1), chloro (Short Chain Chloraned Partifin)	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4	90640.81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 56-35- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3 120-12-7 85335-84- 8	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57:0) Endocrine draphics Endocrine draphics Endocrine draphics Endocrine draphics Endocrine draphics PET and 57:0 Carcinogenic, instagenic endocrine draphics PET (anticle 57:0) Carcinogenic (article 57:0) PET (article 57:0) PET (art	ED 36/2017 ED 62/2009 ED 62/2009 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 36/2008 ED 36/2008 ED 36/2008
a) with C12-ach branched ally channes ignormastion, covering any idd/D2019 c.dotecyb, branched EC No. : 101-154- SN 051-1215-85-85 (1997), approprint) dimensive EC No. : -1 (24) (24) (25) (25) (25) (25) (25) (25) (25) (25			08/07/2021	(Antice 57c) Electricito Argunda Statistica Electricito Argunda Statistica environmento) Endocume doscripting properties (Anticle 57(r)- banana beath Tossi: for respondention (Anticle 57c)	D(2021)4569-DC	Arthracerse oil, anfracerse paste Sodium dichromate Stert-buryl: 2.4.6-trainto-m:xylene (mank xylene) 4.4.7-Daminologhenylmethane (MDA) Britytholythinyloade (TBTO) Triefly arsenate Diburyl phthalne (DBP) Darrenic trioxide Adlasses: CD-13: datese (Short Chain Chloring restate Beuryl hydralate (BBP)	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 201-557-4 201-557-4 215-481-4 204-577-1 237-476-5 232-064-2 201-622-7	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 36-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3 1320-12-7 85335-84- 8 7784-40-9 85-68-7	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	ED 467/007 ED 65/2009 ED 65/2009 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008
a) with C12-rich branched alloy channel ignormations, or covering any radio-total biological systems and the covering any radio-total biological systems and the covering and the covering (hereargo-new) distribution of the covering of the biological systems and the covering of the covering (hereargo-new) distribution of the covering of the coveri			08/07/2021	(Anicle 57c) Endocrine druge drug	D(2021)4569-DC	Authracene oil, anfracene paste Sodium dichromate Start-Johyl, 2:A 6-trainto-un-sylene (mask sylene) 4:-D Damondopheny Junchase (MDA) Bitchbuytanystade (TBTO) Tarelyi aronase Dibord phthalase (DBP) Dannenic trioxide Authracene Authorene Lood hydogen aronase Lood hydogen aronase	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 201-357-4 202-974-5 232-064-2	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 36-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3 1320-12-7 85335-84- 8 7784-40-9 85-68-7	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	ED 48/2007 ED 68/2009 ED 68/2009 ED 68/2009 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008
 dilylation products (mainly in para any with C12-mcb branched alloy (fama) with C12-mcb branched alloy (fama) any with C12-mcb branched alloy (fama) (a comparation) (fama) (fama) with any strain of the strain of the strain strain of comparation of the strain of the strain strain of comparation of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of the strain of the strain of the strain strain of the strain of			08/07/2021	Oknice 57c) Description of the second seco	D(2021)4569-DC D(2021)4569-DC	Arthracerse oil, anfracerse paste Sodium dichromate Stert-buryl: 2.4.6-trainto-m:xylene (mank xylene) 4.4.7-Daminologhenylmethane (MDA) Britytholythinyloade (TBTO) Triefly arsenate Diburyl phthalne (DBP) Darrenic trioxide Adlasses: CD-13: datese (Short Chain Chloring restate Beuryl hydralate (BBP)	292-603-2 234-190-3 201-329-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 202-974-4 201-557-4 201-557-4 215-481-4 204-577-1 237-476-5 232-064-2 201-622-7	90640-81- 6 7789-12-0, 10588-01- 9 81-15-2 101-77-9 36-35-9 15606-95- 8 84-74-2 1327-53-3 1320-12-7 85335-84- 8 7784-40-9 85-68-7	13/01/2010 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008 28/10/2008	(article 57:0) Endocrine drughts, 57:0) Imman health) Carcinogenei, and the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the s	ED 46/2007 ED 68/2009 ED 68/2009 ED 68/2009 ED 67/2008 ED 67/2008

Consolidated Ethical Policies



12.2 Waste Management

Don-Bur disposes of waste in a responsible manner in accord with regulation 12 of the waste regulations (England & Wales). Below is an example of a waste transfer confirmation for metals, wood and general waste:

TC SKIP HIRE I SKIP HIRE & METAL MERCHA tou782 535113 m:07971 538267			<u>TC SKIP HIRE Ltd</u>	& SCRAP METAL	MERCHANTS
				re Controlled Waste Transfer	Note
Dear Customer			DESCRIPTION OF WASTE 1: Description of waste been transferm	red: Mixed Metals	
Re: Annual Waste Transfer N	otes		2: European Waste Catalogue Code: 3: How is the waste contained? Skip	200140	
	e your waste off site of removing your waste and s been to a high standard at all times.		CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE FULL NAME: Donbur Bodies (Bodies & Address: Donbur Bodies (Bodies & Which of the following are you:	& Trailers) Ltd, Clarence Road, St	oke on Trent, ST3 IAZ e on Trent, ST3 IAZ
Under regulation 12 of the w	aste regulations (England and Wales) it is our du	v	Waste Producer	Holder of waste	License No
	ou with controlled annual waste transfer note fo		Waste Importer	management license Exempt from waste Management licensing	Issued by Registration no
Please find your waste transfe	er note for material disposed of. Please sign bot Ir own records and send a signed copy back to u		Waste collection Authority Waste disposal Authority (Scotland only)	Registered waste carrier exempt from requirement to register	issued by reason by
at sales@tcskiphire.co.uk	a signed copy back to u		PERSON COLLECTING THE FULL NAME: TC Skip Hire Ltd	WASTE	
Thanking you for your cooper	ration		Address of Company: The White S.I.C 3720	Horse Elder Road Cobridge S1	16 2PQ
manking you for your cooper	ation		Which of the following are you: Waste Collection Authority	authorized for	Specify Purpose
				Transport Purposes	
			Waste Disposal Authority (Scotland only)	Holder of waste Licens management license	se no:CB/DU41229
Kindest regards				Exempt from waste Management licensing	
				Registered waste carrier	Registration no
Becky Karling				Exempt from requirement To register	reason why:
Site Manager			ADDRESS OF PLACE OF TRANSFER	R: Donbur Bodies (Bodies & Trail	ers) Ltd, Clarence Road. Stoke
Tc skip Hire Ltd			on Trent, ST3 IAZ		
is skip nile Ltu			Date of transfer: 31.08.22 - 01.09.20	023	
		И	Signature (Transferor)	Signature(transferee)	Tony Carter
		N 1	Full name (representing)	Full name (Represent	ing) Te Skip Hire Ltd
			By Signing above I have fulfilled my regulation12 of the waste (England a	y duty to apply the Waste Hierar and Wales) regulation 2011	rchy applied as required by
			14		
Duty of Ca DESCRIPTION OF MARTS 1: Description of wate ben transfer 2: European Wate Cralegue Code: 3: How is the waste contained? Skip Current HolDer OF THE WASTE	(TRANSFEROR)		Duty of Ca DESCRIPTION OF WART 2: Description of wate been transfer 2: European Wate Catalogue Code: 3: How is the waste contained? Skip CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE	Mixed General Waste	Note
Duty of Ca Description of wate been transfer 2: Broyce Mate Catalogue Code: 3: How is the wate contained? Stip CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE TULL NAME: Chuber Bodies (Bodies	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note ref 20037 Wool (TRANSFEOR) (TANSFEOR) (TANSFEOR) (Charge Read, Stoke on Trent ST3 I/Z Trailers) Ltd, Clarence Read, Stoke on Trent ST3 I/Z		Duty of Ca DESCRIPTION OF WASTE E Description of waste been transfer 2 European Waste Catalogue Code: 3: How is the waste contained? Skip	re Controlled Waste Transfer red: 200301 Mised General Waste E (TRANSFEROR) & Trailero JLd, Chernee Read, Si	Note
Duty of Ca Discoperiod of water E Beacrigion of water Bent transfer 2: European Water Catalogue Code: 2: How is the water contained? Sign CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE TULL NMIC Downe Bedies (Bodles & Which of the following are you:	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note (TRANSTEROR) (Transfer) Lid. Clemene Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 MZ Traffer) Lid. Clemene Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 MZ Holder of Waste License No management license Liseues Dy Exempt From waste Registration no		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca Description of wate been transfer 2: Eoropean Water Catalogie Code: 2: How it the water contained? Sign CURRENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE FULL NAKE DENNE Boiles (Boddes & Which of the following gare you:	Controlled Waste Transfer More General Waste (TRANSFEROH) (Transfer Lu, Clemene Road, St Traffer) Lu, Clemene Road, St Holder of Ywaste management license Exempt from waste	Note iske on Trent ST3 I/AZ e on Trent ST3 I/AZ
Duty of Ca Description of wate been under the E Description of wate been under the E Description of wate been under the E Description of water been under the E Description of water been under the E Description of the E Description CHILE NAKE Description of the Mark Cale Description of the Water Cale Cale of the Description Water Cale Cale of the Description E Description of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description E Description of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description of the Description of the Mark Cale Cale of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the Description of the	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note (TANSTEROR) (TANSTEROR) (TANSTEROR) (A Cherner Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 IAZ Trailers) Ltd. Cherner Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 IAZ Holder of Waste License No management license License No		Duty of Ca Description of wate been transfer because the second second second the second second second second second CHRISTIC HOLDER OF THE WASTE FULL NARE: beacher Bedier (Bodes & Weich of the following are you: Which of the following are you: Waste of produce: Waste of Ingorier	re Controlled Wate Transfer Med General Wate (TRANSFEROR) à Trafer) Lid. Cherner Road, Si Holder of was management license Exempt from waste Management licensing Registered Wate carrier	Note uoke on Trent ST3 WZ e on Trent ST3 WZ License No Isaucd by
Dury of Ca Description OF WASTE Description OF WASTE 2. Enderstein Neural Ender Inder 2. Enderstein Neural Ender 2. How in the water contained 7. Sign CHERENT HOLDER OF THE WASTE FULLI NAKE DANNE Bedies (Bedies & Which of the follows Bedies (Bedies & Waste Producer	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note (TANSTEROR) (TANSTEROR) (TANSTEROR) (TANSTEROR) (Tanson to the term of term o		Duty of Ca DESCRIPTION OF WASTE Description of waste been transfer 2: eropean Waste Catalogues Code: 3: How in the waste cranitard? Sign 2: How in the waster cranitard? Sign 2: How in the waster cranitard? Sign 2: How in the waster for the waster full LINAKE books Beals (Soles & Which of the following fare you: Waste Producer Waste Importer	re Controlled Wate Transfer ref: 20030 Med General Wate (TRNSFEROI) 4: Tralen) Ltd. Cherose Road, Stak Holder of wast management lisense Exempt from waste Management lisense	Note noke on Trent ST3 WZ e on Trent ST3 WZ License No Issued by Registration no
Dury of Ca Description of watte beat remained 2. Beachpion of watte beat remained 2. Beachpion watte Catalogue Code: 2. Boach and the contained 2. Boach 2. Boach and the contained 2. Boach and the cont	er Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note et 20037 Wood to Trafery) Lid, Clarence Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 MZ Trafery) Lid, Clarence Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 MZ Holder of waste management license Holder of waste Registration no Management licensing Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registration no Registra		Dury of Ca Description of wate between transfer 2: Encorption to wate between transfer 2: Encorption to wate between transfer 2: How the water contained: Silo CHIENER HOLDER OF THE WATER HILL NAKE: Denbres Bedies (Bodies & Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Water Ordeours) Between Automatic Automatics (Scollam only) PERSON COLLECTION OF THE Full Address of Company: The White Full	re Controlled Wate Transfer Mod General Wate Controlled Wate Transfer Mod General Wate Controller Tradeny Lid, Cherner Road, Sta Holden of waste management licensing Registered waste carrier eventp from requirement to register WASTE	Note toke on Trent 573 WZ c on Trent 573 WZ License No Issued by Registration no issued by reason by
Description of wate between transfer 2: European Vaste Catalogue Cede: 2: How the water constant of the 2: How the water constant of the CHURCHY HOLDER OF THE WASTE TULL NAKE Constrained Statistics Address: Donbur Bedies (Bodies & Which of the following are you: Water collection cathority (Scotland) PERSON COLLECTING THE F FULL NAME: TC Skip fine Lid Address of Company: The Waite SLC 3720	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note (TANSFEROR) (TANSFEROR) (TANSFEROR) (TANSFEROR) (A Transfer) Ltd, Clernere Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 1/Z Trailers) Ltd, Clernere Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 1/Z Holder of Waste Registerior Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 1/Z Exempt from waste Registerior Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 1/Z Exempt from requirement reason by to register WASTE Horse Elder Road Cobridge ST6 2PQ		Dury of Ca Description of watte been transition 10 beartypion watte beart transition 10 beartypion watte challenge collect 10 how the watter contained? Sills 10 how the how to be sold the watter 10 how the how to be sold the watter 10 how the how to be sold the watter 10 how to be sold the how to 10 how to be sold to be sold to 10 how to 1	controlled Wate Transfer controlled Wate Transfer def General Wate controlled Wate Transfer def General Wate controlled Wate Transfer def General Wate controlled controlled Wate controlled control	• Note where on Trent ST3 UAZ e on Trent ST3 UAZ License No Issued by Registration no issued by reason by 16 2PQ
Duty of Ca Duty of Ca	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note (TMNSTERNE) (Transfer) Ltd. (Carrine Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 MZ Transfer) Ltd. (Carrine Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 Transfer) Transfer) Ltd. (Carrine Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 Transfer) Ltd. (Carrine Road, Stoke end Stoke		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca Duty of Ca Duty of Ca Duty of Calaber Code 2: Anyon of Near Lean Calaber Code 2: Anyon of Near Calaber Code 2: Anyon of Cala	re Controlled Wate Transfer Mord General Wate Controlled Wate Transfer (1997) (Note toke on Trent 573 WZ c on Trent 573 WZ License No Issued by Registration no issued by reason by
Dury of Ca Decorption of wasts been moniformed beneringian of wasts been moniformed beneringian of wasts been moniformed beneringian of the second second benering the second second second difference of the second second second second second difference of the second se	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note response Transfer Note response Transfer Note response Transfer Note response Decemption response Transfer Note response Decempt Purpose Transfer Note response Decempt Purpose Transfer Note response Decempt Purpose response response Decempt Purpose response		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca	re Controlled Waste Transfer Miced General Waste (TRANSFERON) 4 Traffer) Lid. Chemore Road, Si (TRANSFERON) 4 Traffer) Lid. Chemore Road, Si Holder of Yasse Management licensing Registered Waste Carrier exempt from requirement to register WASTE thorse Elder Road Cobridge ST authorized for Transport Paproses Holder of Yasse Licens Licens Licens Licens Licens	• Note where on Trent ST3 WZ, e on Trent ST3 WZ, e on Trent ST3 WZ, License No Issued by Registration no issued by reason by 16 2PQ
Dury of Ca Description of water benefits of the second 20 Sectification of water benefits of the second 20 Sectification of water of the second 20 Sectification of the second 20 Sectification 20 Sectification of the second 20 Sectification of the second 20 Sectification 20 Sectification of the second 20 Sectification of t	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste View Note ret Controlled Waste ret View Note ret Vie		Dury of Ca Description of wate been transition 20 SCHIPTION OF WATE 20 Each prior to wate the test material 20 Schiption of water beat contained? Sign 20 Schiption of the Schiption 20 Schiption of Schiption 20 Sch	rer Controlled Waste Transfer red: 20030 Attend General Waste (TRANSFEROR) A Todary Lid, Cherner Road, Sta Holder of waste Management license Exempt from requirement to register WASTE Honse Elder Road Cobridge SI authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of waste Licen management license Exempt from waste	Note ake on Trent ST3 UZ e on Trent ST3 UZ e on Trent ST3 UZ License No Issued by Registration no issued by T6 2PQ Specify Purpose
Dury of Ca DCCHIPTION of watch beam number 2015 Carterio of watch beam number 2015 Car	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Read. Stoke on Trent ST3 NZ Transfer Utild, Clarence Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 NZ Holder of waste management licencing Registered waste corrier is used by exempt from requirement i reason by to register WASTE Holder of Waste corrier is used by exempt from requirement i reason by Holder ST6 ZPQ management licencies Execute from waste Transperi Puppose Holder of waste management licencies Registered waste Registered waste Registered waste Management licencies		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca	re Controlled Wate Transfer red: 2000 Attend General Wate (TRANSFEROR) 4 Transp. 10.4 Cherne Road, Sta Holder of waste management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Management licencing Holder of youst wASTE Holder Of youst Holder Of youst Management licencie Management licencie Managem	• Note take on Trent ST3 V/Z c on Trent ST3 V/Z c on Trent ST3 V/Z License No Issued by reason by T6 2PQ Specify Purpose se no:CB/DU41229 Registration no
Dury of Ca Decorption of wasts been moniformed beneringian of wasts been moniformed beneringian of wasts been moniformed beneringian of the second second benering the second second second difference of the second second second second second difference of the second se	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note response Transfer Note response Transfer Note response Transfer Provide Transfer Note waste Transfer Note waste Transfer Note response Transfer Note waste Transfer Note		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca	re Controlled Wate Transfer ref: 20030 All Clement Wate C (TANSFEROR) C (TANSFEROR) C (TANSFEROR) C (TANSFEROR) C (TANSFEROR) Holder of waste management licensing Registerd waste carrier exempt from requirement to register WASTE ethonse Elder Road Cobridge ST mathematication Transport Purposes Holder of waste Management licensing Registerd waste carrier Exempt from waste Exempt from requirement	Note ake on Trent ST3 tAZ e on Trent ST3 tAZ e on Trent ST3 tAZ License No Issued by Registration no issued by T6 2PQ Specify Purpose se no.CB/DU41229
Drug of Ca Description of water bear constant of the 2 Bear spran of water bear constant of the 2 Bear spran of water bear constant of the 2 Bear spran of water constant of the 2 Bear spran of the analysis of the analysis of the of the following are your Water constant outpoints during of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis of the analysis	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Controlled Waste Transfer Read. Stoke on Trent ST3 NZ Transfer Utild, Clarence Road, Stoke on Trent ST3 NZ Holder of waste management licencing Registered waste corrier is used by exempt from requirement i reason by to register WASTE Holder of Waste corrier is used by exempt from requirement i reason by Holder ST6 ZPQ management licencies Execute from waste Transperi Puppose Holder of waste management licencies Registered waste Registered waste Registered waste Management licencies		Duty of Ca Duty of Ca	re Controlled Waste Transfer Miced General Waste (TRANSFEROR) 4 Traffer) Lid. Cherner Road, Sta Holder of Waste Englished Waste Management licensing Registered Waste Carrier exempt from requirement to register WASTE Phones Elder Road Cobridge ST authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of Waste Elder Road Cobridge ST authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of Waste Kartes Licens Management licensing Keighsterd Waste carrier Exempt from waste Management licensing Keighsterd Waste carrier Exempt from waste Management licensing Management li	• Note take on Trent ST3 I/IZ e on Trent ST3 I/IZ e on Trent ST3 V/Z License No Registration no issued by reason by Te 2PQ Specify Purpose se no:CB/DU41229 Registration no reason why:
Duy of Ca Description of water beat enabled 2015 Carpton Of Water Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Vaster Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Vaster Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Catelogue Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Catelogue Catelogue Catelogue 2015 Catelogue Catelo	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note weight 20037 "Controlled Waste Transfer Note "WASTE "Horse Elder Road Cobridge ST6 2PQ "Management licensie Registration no Management licensie Registration Note "Exampt from waste "Registration Note "Exampt from waste "Registration Note "Exampt from waste "Registration no "Exampt from wa		Drug of Ca Description of wate beat contained in the section of wate beat contained in the section of wate beat contained in the section of wate contained in the official of the section of the section of the section of the section of the definition of the section of the section of the section of the definition of the section of the section of the definiti	re Controlled Waste Transfer Miced General Waste (TRANSFEROR) 4 Traffer) Lid. Cherner Road, Sta Holder of Waste Englished Waste Management licensing Registered Waste Carrier exempt from requirement to register WASTE Phones Elder Road Cobridge ST authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of Waste Elder Road Cobridge ST authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of Waste Kartes Licens Management licensing Keighsterd Waste carrier Exempt from waste Management licensing Keighsterd Waste carrier Exempt from waste Management licensing Management li	• Note take on Trent ST3 I/IZ e on Trent ST3 I/IZ e on Trent ST3 V/Z License No Registration no issued by reason by Te 2PQ Specify Purpose se no:CB/DU41229 Registration no reason why:
Dury of Ca Decord Ca Decord Ca Decord Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call of Call Of Call of Cal	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Transfer Note		Dury of Ca Decemponent of the sector of the	rer Controlled Waste Transfer rer Controlled Waste Transfer Mitted General Waste (TMNSFERON) A Trader) Lid. Chernere Road, Ste (TMNSFERON) A Trader) Lid. Chernere Road, Ste management licensing Registered Waste carrier exempt from requirement to register waste management licensing authorized for Transport Purposes Holder of Waste Licen management licensing Registered Waste Licen management licensie Sexmpt from waste Management licensie Sexmpt from waste Management licensie Registered Waste Licen management licensie Registered Waste Licen management licensie Sexmpt from waste Management licensing Registered Waste carrier Sexmpt from requirement St. Doubur Bodes (Bodies & Tanlib	• Note take on Trent ST3 WZ con Trent S
DECOMPOSITION OF USE OF THE CONTROL	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note		Dury of Ca Description of watch bears 19 Description of watch bears 20 Description of watch bears 20 Description of watch bears 20 Description of watch bears 20 Description 20 Descriptio	er Controlled Wate Transfer red: 2000 (TMASFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (TATSFEROR) (CONSTENSION	• Note take on Trent ST3 V/Z c on Trent ST3 V/Z c on Trent ST3 V/Z License No Issued by Registration no issued by T6 2PQ Specify Purpose se no:CB/DU41229 Registration no reason why:
Dury of Ca Decorrection Control of the state frame manafer is the symbol of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state is the symbol of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the state of the state of the state of the state is the state of the sta	re Controlled Waste Transfer Note re Controlled Waste Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Note ret Transfer Note ret Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Transfer Note ret Note ret Transfer ret Note		DUSCIPITON OF UNEXT DESCRIPTION OF UNEXT 2: Boardynei of watte beatter contained: Subject 2: Boardynei of watte beatter contained: Subject 2: Boardynei of watter beatter contained: Subject Aufter and Contained and and and and and and and and and an	re Controlled Waste Transfer Miced General Waste (TRANSFERCH) (A Traffer) Lad. Chemene Road, Sat A Traffer) Lad. Chemene Road, Sat Traffer) Lad. Chemene Road, Sat Management licensing Registered waste Management licensing Registered waste A traffer Lad. Chemene Road, Sat Management licensing Registered waste Licensing Registered waste Management licensing Registered waste carrier Excempt from regularement To register Re Donburt Bioder (Modes & Traffer Tisnigster diversioner entrol To register Re Donburt Bioder (Modes & Traffer Signature(transfere) Full name (Regresent y day to apply the Waste Herar	• Note take on Trent ST3 V/Z e on Trent ST3 V/Z iterate ST3 V/Z Specify Purpose se no:CB/DU41229 Registration no reason why: resy Luk, Clamme Road, Suke Toay Carter ing) Te Skip Hire Luk



13 Insurances

Don-Bur has insurance products as detailed below from 30 September 2022 to 29th September 2023.

13.1 Public & Products Liability

Public Liability - GBP 15,000,000 per occurrence

Products Liability - GBP 15,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate

Sudden Pollution Liability - GBP 15,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate

13.2 Employers Liability

GBP 10,000,000 per occurrence, but GBP 5,000,000 in respect of Terrorism or Asbestos

13.3 Confirmation of Insurance

